
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, JULY 18, 2013

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair
Deb Schorr
Jane Raybould
Roma Amundson

Commissioners Absent: Larry Hudkins, Chair

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on July 17, 2013

The Vice Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:31 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE STAFF MEETING MINUTES OF JULY 11, 2013

MOTION: Raybould moved and Schorr seconded approval of the minutes of the
July 11, 2013 Staff Meeting.  Amundson and Hudkins were absent from
voting.  Motion carried 3-0.  

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

None were stated.

 3  KENO HUMAN SERVICES PREVENTION FUND GUIDELINES - Kit
Boesch, Human Services Administrator

Kit Boesch, Human Services Administrator, gave an overview of revisions to the Keno
Human Services Prevention Fund Guidelines.  The most significant revisions involve the
distribution of funds.  In the past, 60% of the Keno proceeds were allocated and the



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

remaining 40% was invested in an endowment fund, which now exceeds $1,000,000. 
She said 100% of the Keno proceeds will now be allocated. 

Amundson arrived at the meeting at 8:33 a.m.

Boesch said the Keno Human Services Prevention Fund Advisory Committee will now
meet once a year to review proposals, noting two-year proposals are requested.  The
grant range is now up to $10,000 for Year 1, and a decreasing amount for Year 2. 
NOTE: The grants were previously limited to one year with a funding ceiling of
$7,500. 

Schorr, who serves on the Advisory Committee, said they anticipate more funding
proposals this year because of the higher grant amount.

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, appeared and said the interlocal agreement
with the City for the Keno Human Services Prevention Fund is also being revised to
reflect how the funds are being disbursed going forward.  The new set of guidelines
will be attached to the revised interlocal agreement.

Schorr asked whether the interlocal agreement will reference how the endowment
funds will be invested.  Behrens said it can outline the statutory authority to invest the
funds but the language will be broad in terms of how that will be accomplished.

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, noted a letter was sent to the City Attorney,
on behalf of the City Council and Joint Budget Committee (JBC), asking if the reserve
funds can be invested with the Community Health Endowment (CHE).  He said the
CHE Board of Directors are resistant, stating it is beyond their mission.  Eagan said
there are a couple of other options, but they aren’t as favorable.  

 4 BUDGET UPDATE (COUNTY ENGINEER’S BUDGET) - Don Thomas,
County Engineer; Ken Schroeder, County Surveyor 

Don Thomas, County Engineer, gave an overview of the Bridge and Special Road Fund
and Highway Fund budgets (Exhibits A and B), noting the following:

• The County received more revenues than anticipated in 2013 and will
collect significant reimbursements from the federal project on the
Denton Road and federal aid work on three bridge projects

• One full-time equivalent (FTE), a Stores Clerk I position, was
eliminated in the Highway Fund

• Gas tax receipts in the Highway Fund were higher than anticipated
• Right-of-Way funds in the Bridge Fund (Line Item 67120) were re-

budgeted because projects were carried over from the previous year
• Sinking Fund-Prior Contracts (Line Item 67540) in the Bridge Fund

also reflects a re-budgeting of funds for projects that were carried
over from previous years 



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

• Funds in the Sinking Fund-Buildings (Line Item 67220) in the Highway
Fund will be used for a replacement building for the Hickman Motor
Grader Patrol Station

• Total tax requirement for the General Fund and Bridge Fund will be
$9,772,656 (2.1% increase)

Thomas said an additional budget will be created to account for the funds the County
will receive from the State’s federal funds purchase program (the State will buyout the
County’s federal aid).  He said anticipates the County will receive $243,000 for roads
and $80,228 for bridges in 2014. 

Thomas also discussed construction projects.  He said they will be paving Saltillo Road,
between South 98th Street to South 120th Street, and grading Pine Lake Road, from
South 112th Street to South 148th Street, next summer.  Thomas also reported on plans
to overlay 12.6 miles of pavement and participate in a federal pavement painting
project that will use thermoplastic paint.

Schorr asked whether South 98th Street from “A” Street to “O” Street was included in
the budget.  Thomas said it was not, noting a lawsuit is delaying the project. 

 5 REPORT ON SOUTH 98TH STREET ROAD CONSTRUCTION - Don
Thomas, County Engineer; Doug Pillard, Design Division Head, County
Engineering

Raybould asked how County Engineering communicates the timeline and scope of
construction projects to area residents and others that are impacted.  Doug Pillard,
Design Division Head, County Engineering, said it is communicated through the public
hearing on the One and Six Year Road and Bridge Improvement Program, the right-of-
way process, letters to landowners, a list of projects under construction on the County
Engineer’s webpage and through the inspector that is on-site.  He said they also use
message boards if it is a highly traveled road.  

Thomas said emergency responders, such as fire departments, are also notified. 
Pillard said property owners are also notified that they will have to move their mail
boxes and the U.S. Postal Service coordinates mail delivery with the landowners during
construction.

Raybould asked whether the letters to landowners include recommended routes. 
Pillard said no, but the detour is posted.

Amundson inquired about the impact to farmers who need to get into a field.  Pillard
said the contractor is required to provide access to farmers and landowners, typically
in the morning and afternoon.  The contractor will also work with them to
accommodate special activities.



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

Raybould asked whether anyone contacted Terry Otto, a landowner who expressed
concerns regarding road construction on South 98th Street between “A” Street and Van
Dorn.  Pillard said yes, she received a letter at the beginning of the project and said
the inspector spoke to her more than once over the course of the project.

Raybould suggested that letters sent to landowners include information about the
County Engineer’s webpage.  She also suggested that the County Engineering consider
holding an open house to relay information when there are large projects.  Thomas
said they tried that in the past without much success.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Emeeting Software Demonstration

There was consensus to decline the Nebraska Association of County Officials’ (NACO’s)
invitation to attend the demonstration.

B. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Transition Update

Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, reported the following:

• Richard Grabow, Deputy County Attorney, is working with Lutheran
Family Services on a staffing contract

• Information Services (IS) will sanitize computers before they are
turned over to the new providers

• Dates have not been firmly established for the transition of
community behavioral health services from CMHC to new providers

• A County Connections television show giving an update on the
transition of services was taped with representatives of the new
providers and Region V and is available for viewing on 5City TV on
YouTube

• Region V has provided the County with copies of transition
Memorandums of Understanding (MOU’s) 

 6 EMPLOYEE HEALTH RISK APPRAISALS - Sue Eckley, County Risk
Manager 

Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, said an on-line health risk appraisal will be offered
to all County employees through the County’s wellness program.  She said she and
Keerun Kamble, City Wellness Coordinator, met with county agencies and discussed
the survey, which will run from July 29th through August 30th.  The survey goes
through health habits, diet, health screenings, activities and smoking and alcohol use. 
Eckley said the County will receive a composite report of results and the departments
will get a report for themselves (smaller departments will be grouped together).  She
said the survey will identify the top five areas of health concern and the Wellness
Committee will focus on those areas. 



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

Raybould asked whether the survey asks about stress in the workplace.  Eckley said
yes, there are questions about the employee’s relationship with their supervisor and
the overall work environment.

Eckley suggested the Board provide a financial incentive to increase employee
participation.  She said a similar incentive was offered in the past and there was a high
rate of participation (90% of the workforce).  Board members agreed to each
contribute $10.00 for a drawing that will be held at the end of the survey period.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

C. Procedure for Selling Real Property (Community Mental Health Center
(CMHC) and Midtown Center)

Eagan noted the Board had requested a County Attorney’s opinion regarding the
procedure.  He said there may not be sufficient facts for the County Attorney to give a
definitive opinion. 

Schorr asked whether the opinion will be broad enough to include a procedure for
selling other County-owned buildings, such as Trabert Hall and the former Attention
Center for Youth, which is currently leased to CenterPointe and used as a Juvenile
Drug Rehabilitation Facility.  Eagan said no, it is specific to CMHC and the Midtown
Center.

D. Keno Application from Kramer Bar & Grill

Eagan explained that a public hearing is not required.  The Board scheduled the item
on the July 23, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

E. Trabert Hall Appraisal

MOTION: Raybould moved and Amundson seconded to direct Don Killeen, County
Property Manager, to seek quotes for an appraisal of Trabert Hall, with a
report back to the Board.

FRIENDLY AMENDMENT:  Schorr offered a friendly amendment to also request
quotes for an appraisal of the former Attention Center for Youth`.

The maker of the motion and the seconder accepted the friendly amendment.

ROLL CALL:  Amundson, Schorr, Raybould and Smoyer voted aye.  Hudkins was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

 7 PENDING LITIGATION - Richard Grabow, Deputy County Attorney

MOTION: Amundson moved and Raybould seconded to enter Executive Session at
9:45 a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards
to pending litigation. 

The Vice Chair restated the motion for the record.

ROLL CALL: Raybould, Amundson, Schorr and Smoyer voted aye.  Hudkins was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0. 

Amundson exited the meeting to attend the Nebraska Association of County Officials
(NACO) Institute of Excellence.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Raybould seconded to exit Executive Session at 10:11
a.m.  Raybould, Schorr and Smoyer voted aye.  Amundson and Hudkins
were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.

 8 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

 9 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

10 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Emeeting Software Demonstration
B. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Transition Update
C. Procedure for Selling Real Property (Community Mental Health Center

(CMHC) and Midtown Center)
D. Keno Application from Kramer Bar & Grill
E. Trabert Hall Appraisal

Items A-D were moved forward on the agenda.

F. Legislative Retreat Agenda

Minette Genuchi, Administrative Assistant to the County Board, appeared and said
Senators Bolz, Haar and Wallman have indicated they plan to attend the retreat. 
Senator Campbell indicated she is unable to attend.

11 PENDING

There were no pending items.



Page 7 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

12 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC) - Raybould

Raybould said they received an update on the Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) and
discussed the Information Services (IS) interlocal agreement between the City and
County.

B. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - Hudkins

Schorr said she and Raybould attended the meeting.  She said they discussed long-
range plans for the Parks and Recreation Department.  Schorr said they also went on a
bus tour of the proposed Haines Branch Prairie Corridor that will link Pioneers Park and
the Spring Creek Prairie.

C. Human Services Joint Budget Committee (JBC) - Raybould, Schorr

Schorr said the majority of the discussion focused on the possibility of using the Keno
Emergency Fund to assist in hiring three AmeriCorps workers to assist with juvenile
justice prevention programs at the Malone Community Center, Salvation Army and El
Centro de Las Americas.

D. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Budget Monitoring
Committee - Smoyer

Smoyer said they discussed Lincoln’s police/population ratio and decided to encourage
the City to hire additional police officers.

E. Public Building Commission (PBC) Meeting with Mayor - Hudkins

No report.

F. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Hudkins, Raybould

Raybould said there was a presentation on the artists selected for the 2013-2014
public art venue.  The PBC also discussed security measures.

13 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items and other business.



Page 8 BOC/STAFF/07/18/2013

14 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Raybould moved and Schorr seconded to adjourn the meeting at 10:30
a.m.  Raybould, Schorr and Smoyer voted aye.  Amundson and Hudkins
were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.

__________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk




















